To provide person-centered services that enhance the quality of life for people with disabilities
in the areas of employment, life skills, and community inclusion.

F
PRO

PROACT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Meeting Notice and Agenda
Tuesday, August 26, 2025

5:00 PM
ProAct-Eagan Via Zoom and/or in person

Board members attending: Brian Knapp, Chuck DeNet, Jim Louwagie, John Christiansen, Marty
Stapleton, Mary Ellen Leary, Pat Jones, Paul Kramp, Steve Quirk, Teri McCloughan

Via Zoom:

Board members absent:

Staff attending: Judie Foster-Lupkin, Amanda Ballard, Melissa Munce, Doug Cowles, Anna Shields, Jo
Ann Peine

1. Call to Order and Attendance
2. Approval of the Agenda (Additions/Corrections/Deletions)

3. Review and Approve Board Meeting Minutes of meeting held June 3", 2025
a. Note: Corrections to May Minutes (June Packet) are available on the Board Portal

4. Financials: Income Statement for May (vote) and July (preliminary) YTD; Rolling 12 Month
Reports, Cash Flow Statement, and Balance Sheet
a. Audit update

5. Shakopee Update
a. Purchase
b. Items completed and in the works

6. Capital Budget FY 25-26
a. Capital Budget FY 24-25 Update

7. Program and Services Report presented by Doug Cowles and Anna Shields
a. Program Update
b. Trends and Plans for growth for the 24-25 year
c. Grievances & Complaints, Incident Review & Report
d. EE Contract and Program Statutes & Rules

8. Plan Review
a. Technology Plan - Judie



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Barrier Removal Plan — Doug/Anna

Risk Management Plan - Judie

Cultural Competency Plan - Doug

Outcomes Management & Stakeholders Report - Doug

o a0 o

401K Plan Review - Jo Ann
Corporate Compliance Report - Jo Ann

Staffing
i. Staff Turnover Rate —Jo Ann

Organization Annual Policy Review
a. Board required signed policies will be sent via DocuSign post meeting
i. Conflict of Interest (to be sent to BOD and SL Team)
ii. Code of Conduct

President & CEO Report
a. Marketing & Communications Report
b. Food Truck Recap

Looking Ahead
a. Board Assessment (required by CARF and Charities Review)

i. Assessment will be sent via Survey Monkey in September

New Business
a. New Board Members

Adjourn

Reminder: No September Meeting
Next Meeting: October 7", 2025



To provide person-centered services that enhance the quality of life for people with disabilities in the areas of
employment, life skills, and community inclusion.

P

PRO

PROACT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Meeting Minutes
Tuesday, June 3, 2025
5:00 PM
ProAct-Eagan Via Zoom and/or in person

Board members attending: Jim Louwagie, John Christiansen, Marty Stapleton, Steve Quirk, Teri McCloughan
Via Zoom: Brian Knapp, Mary Ellen Leary, Paul Kramp

Board members absent: Chuck DeNet, Pat Jones

Staff attending: Judie Foster-Lupkin, Amanda Ballard, Melissa Munce

1. Call to Order and Attendance
Board Chair Brian Knapp called the meeting to order at 5:01 pm

2. Approval of the Agenda (Additions/Corrections/Deletions)
Brian Knapp asked for a motion to accept the board agenda, which Teri McCloughan moved to accept, seconded by John
Christiansen, and the motion carried unanimously.

3. Review and Approve Board Meeting Minutes of meeting held May 6, 2025
The board reviewed the May 6 minutes and noted two corrections. These will be corrected and posted to the board
portal.

Brian Knapp asked for a motion to accept the minutes with the corrections discussed for 7. Shakopee Relocation Update,
moved by John Christiansen and seconded by Steve Quirk. The motion carried unanimously.

4. Financial Report for April and YTD; Rolling 12-Month Reports, Cash Flow Statement and Balance Sheet
In April, there were 22 service days. The net income from operations for the month was $129,004. Year-to-date, our
income from operations stands at just over $1 million.

The Cash and Investment summary reflects a total of around $23 million. Our CDs and CDARs are being rolled over as
they mature. The balance sheet remains consistent and reconciled.

Brian Knapp requested a motion to accept the April financials. Paul Kramp moved to accept the financials, and John
Christiansen seconded the motion, which was unanimously approved

5. Capital Budget Update

The Red Wing wall project has been completed, and Judie conducted a walk-through for the wall and window, which
looked great! There is one additional repair needed for the roof and flashing that will be addressed once the painting is
finished. Judie plans to return to Red Wing next week for the final walk-through. Once this is done, the work will be
featured in an upcoming issue of ProAct Post.

The next steps for Red Wing involve updating the interior. Judie has met with the staff and has started a redesign plan.
There was additional discussion regarding interior updates and bathroom remodeling. The board noted that $500,000



has been allocated in the capital budget for these interior improvements, and they agreed to explore options for
collaborating with an interior designer or design firm for design options and space planning.

Lastly, the board was informed that Judie will be meeting with the staff in Red Wing to announce a change in business
hours. The plan is to extend Friday hours, as Red Wing currently closes at 1 PM on Fridays.

6. Program and Services Repoit

There were 22 service days in April, and we served 769 participants. We are seeing small and steady growth throughout
all departments with lots of outings this summer!

We are currently almost fully staffed with only 1 opening in Day Services; we will also be welcoming back our DSP
Assistants (age 16+) for the summer.

The Program Directors are working on an updated format for Program numbers, starting in July. The entire Senior
Leadership Team will be attending the August board meeting.

7. Shakopee Update
Brian Knapp requested to go into Executive Session to discuss the Shakopee Relocation Update. Terry McCloughan
moved to begin the Executive Session, and Jim Louwagie seconded the motion, which was unanimously approved.

The Executive Session ended at 5:54 pm.

There is a board resolution authorizing the purchase and designating the President and CEO as the signatory for the
purchase of 4301 Dean Lakes Blvd. Shakopee, MN, for the purchase price of 6.25 million without outside financing. The
resolution will need the Secretary and Treasurer's signature, which Amanda will send via DocuSign following the
meeting.

Brian Knapp asked for a motion to accept the board resolution as noted above, which Teri McCloughan moved to accept,
seconded by Marty Christiansen, and the motion carried unanimously.

8. Looking Ahead
a. Food Truck Event — Board Welcome!
Judie invited all Board Members to our Food Truck events for those interested in attending.

9. President & CEO Report
a. Proposed FY 25-26 Board Dates
The Board unanimously approved FY 25-26 Board Dates.
b. Election of Officers/Board Members for FY 26-27
i. Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer
Brian has nominated Mary Ellen as the upcoming FY 25-26 Chair, Chuck and Paul have both accepted nominations to
continue their current positions as Treasurer and Secretary. Brian offered to hold the Vice Chair position for FY 25-26.

Brian Knapp asked for a motion to accept the slate of officers for FY 25-26, which Jim Louwagie moved to accept,
seconded by Terry McCloughan, and the motion carried unanimously.

ii. Marty Stapleton, Mary Ellen Leary, Paul Kramp
There are three board members up for election for FY 25-26: Marty, Mary Ellen, and Paul.

Brian Knapp asked for a motion to accept the renewal of these board members, which Teri McCloughan moved to
accept, seconded by Steve Quirk, and the motion carried unanimously.

¢. Annual By-Law Review
The board reviewed By-Laws and there were no changes.



d. Marketing & Communications Report

Judie highlighted ProAct’s Marketing and Communication Reports and noted the upcoming Viewpoint Premier Party!
The President of MOHR will be attending.

10. New Business
No New Business to discuss.

11. Adjourn
Brian Knapp called the meeting to adjourn at 6:10 PM.

Next Meeting: August 26%, 2025
Submitted by Amanda Ballard



L

abed

6£2'995 9/1'69€'L  88¥'9GS'L  1ZG'L.E GL0'9g6‘'L  1568°c8 805'7€2 101'9.2 ST ArA 09e'8Le JNOODNI 13N

(zoo'ogl)  $66'088 £66'05. 0 £66°0GL £G8'GL €0.L'2rl GGS5'81T 0 GG5'8LT SININLSNrav V1oL
(G10'92) GelL'65¢2 LzL'esl 0 LzL'esl 716'€9l 0 ¥/6'€9l 0 7/6'€91 SINVYHDO JNIL-INO
(886°¢S) 098129 €/8'195S 0 €18°'295 (1z1'889) €0L'Tyl 1857 0 18G'¥S SSOTNIVO LIMHVIN

1#2'969 08.'88¥ G608 128°1.¢ 120'G8L°L  666'L 908°16 786°.8 £6Z'Zy 508'66 NOILYHIdO WOH4 JNOINI L3N

Ge0'8ze Z8¥'S/2'0L  9¥8'9Z 1/9'9/6'0L  Z1S'€09'0L Zvl'eT ¥09'€G6 (L1z'yvl) 295°166 9ve'L16 S3ISNIJX3 V101
(00'6) 006'9€€ (995'09) 19¥7'88¢€ G68°'L2¢ (1zi'zy) 9e1'8¢ (£69'¢) T.6'62 GLe'92 3SNIdX3 ¥3IHIO
(z9e'29) 810'22e (709'c) 09z'c0€ 959652 181 ¥€€'61 (ove'2) 09¥'.2 0z1'02 INIVIAL® "Ivd3d ‘SAILMALILN
(9¢8'62) 8/6'8L1 (228'99) 710°951 Z71'66 (66'71) 1£9'61 (L¥¥'6) r A 4 9/9'v HIVd3d ININLINDI
(629) 761°66¢ LWLl ¢l 1GE ¥19'86¢ (z£9) GLL'GE L06°L 9g£9'z¢ YG'Pe ISNIdX3 ONILYHIHO FT1OIHIA
(22¥'88) 058°26¢ €zL'0s 00€'652 €C¥'60¢ (L¥8'p) /8G°'C¢ €206 899'8lL \Wi'le NOILYIO3¥d3a
00'GS 112'0.8 168'70L 9Gt°0Z¢ VAN A4 (91L2'9) 0¥6'0¢ (z28'9) 96062 ¥ze'ze SIVIMILYIN % S3INddNS
9/9°191 8Ty oSy 6.L'0LL (S TAWA 47 01819 L9L‘og 8€.'2¢ £2£'62 G/G'LE 868'29 SIAVINYIS LOVHINOOENS
980°0l €zL'Shl (£18'2) 78£'8G1 608'SS1 (892°2) 6LLLL (160°1) L¥¥'SlL 0Se'vl S1I43INIF/STDVYM JINNSNOD
9eL'8L 9Z¥'¥SS'L  9ve'ee 9lE'¥6G'L  295'TE9’L  8S¥'SL 9657l 89z'c G8.'9G1 £60'091 SLI43N3g 44V1S
G12'€92 169'€GL'9  (8LL'WLL)  ¥89°16S'9  996'9LY'9  GLELT 6¥0°'€8S (z8e's2) 108'629 GZy'v09 SIOVYM 44VY1S

S3ISNadX3

9/Z'¥20')L  T9ZT'P9L'0L  LPE'VES 961'vG6'0L  8€5'88L°LL  OvL'LE 0LP'SY0'L  seg'er GL8'ee0’l  0GL2L0'L INNIAIY TVLOL
GveZ8 765682 1€6°LG1 000022 1€6°L1€ 8v.L'L 869'0€ Svv'cl 00002 Shy'ze INNIATY "IAHLO
(gs8'01) 90L'€L (yze'2) G/1'G9 16829 (825'1) 660'C (S0%'9) GZ6'S 128 ONISIVYANNA
€0E'60L'L  98/'€6G'8  /S¥'0Z. ££9'786'8  680'€0.'6  GBZ'PY 656128 ¥91'89 0,0°8¥8 ¥£Z'916 S334 IDING3S
(z1g'961)  8z1'208'L  (BTL'Se) 06£'989'L  199'069'L  (v2L'zl) v.9'0¥1 (698°1€) 028'651 166°/21 INNIATH LOVHINOD

INNIAIY

JONVIYVA  TvNLOVY  JONVIEVA  139and IVNLOY  FONVIMVA  IVNLOVY  IONVIMVA  139dnd IVNLOY NOILdIYOS3a

dv3IA
1SV dLlA alA ala dVY3IA LSV HLNOW HLNOW
GZ0Z ‘1€ AVIN
S3ISNIJXT ANV INNIATY 40 INTFNILVLS NV 116



L

abed

(€20'2) lelLegee 292021 8%8'09 GLLLeT (€20'2) lgl'eee 192'0L1 8¥8'09 GLL'LEZ JNOONI L3N

(665°12) 67170l 76528 0 $6G6Z8 (565'1.2) 6vL'v0L #5528 0 ¥95°28 SININLSNrayvy Iv.1oL
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 SINVYDO JNIL-INO
(565°12) 6v7L'v0L #6528 0 i A] (g65°12) 6¥L'v0L #6528 0 ¥56'28 SSOTNIVO LIMIVIN

z.6'61 986'8Z1 €12'/8 8¥8'09 196'8t7L z.5'6) 986'8Z1 £12'28 81809 196'gvL NOILYYIdO INOYH INODNI L3N

00.'26 168956 £81'.G 89¢'/66 LGG'¥G0'L 00126 1G8'966 €818 89¢'/66 LGG'¥S0'L S3aSNAJXI V.LOL
£ET'Y 00062 082 £66°Z¢ £ez'ee £eT'y 00062 082 £G6'ZE gez'ee JSNIdX3 ¥IHLO
8vL'G GGz 810'¢ GlZ'l2 £62°0¢ 8rL'S Gvl'Ge 810'c G/Z'/2 £62'0¢ INIVIN B dIVd3Y ‘S3AILINILN
(209'01) £66°LL (Gvz'L) 0£9'8 Gee'.L (L09'01) £66°L1 (G¥z')) 0€9'8 Gge'L HIvd3d LININDINO3
118'2 089'v€ 961L'G GGE'ZE 165°2¢ 1182 08972 961G GGE'Ze 16G'2¢ ISNIJXZ ONILYHIHO FTOIHIA
181'S v.1'vC (Sv¥'L) 908°0¢ 19€'6C 181G VL1V (S¥¥'L) 908°0¢ 19¢£'62 NOILYIOZ¥d3a
£vL'9 LeL1z (5z0'y) 668°LE ¥18°'/2 ev.'9 LeLLz (czo'y) 668°LE v.8'/2 STIVIYILYIN 8 S3INddNS
0LL'9¢ 6.7'8S 66€'€Z 058°LS 6¥2'GL 0LL'9€ 6.7'8S 66£'€T 068°LG 6v2'SL SIOINYIS LOVHINODENS
(gve) 198'GlL 88.°1 gzl'el 9lg'gl (5¥¢) 198'GlL 88.°1L 8zL'el 916'Gl S1I43aN3G/STDYM JINNSNOD
€652 £ve'esL 919'9 19Z'¥S1 9809} £€5'C £YE'8S1 9199 L9Z'¥SL 9/8'09) S1I143IN39 44V1S
99L'Gy 60265 009'€Z Z19'c1l9 z12'189 99L Gy G¥0°Z6S 009'€Z z19'cl9 zLziLe9 SIOVM 44V1S

S3ISNIAJLXT

cLT'LLL 6S8'G80°'L  968'F¥lL 91Z'8G0°'L  ZLL'e0Z'L  €L2'lLL 6£8°G80'L  968'PYl 91Z'g60'L  ZLL'€0Z’L IANNIAIY TVLOL
(v12'%) 228'0G 67061 005'22 6v5'9F (vL2'v) 22806 60'61 005°22 67G'oF INNIATY ¥IHLO
(6€1L'9) £¥9'6 (962'2) 00€'6 ¥05°L (6€1'9) £v9'6 (962°2) 00¢'6 ¥0S'} ONISIVYANNA
£68'¢L 9£5°606 6S0'V0L 16£'G.8 6Zv'6.6 £68'c/ 9£G'G06 6001 16£G/8 621'6.6 S334 I0INY3S
76.'GS 9£8'6L 1 509'6Z GzZ0'9vlL 0€9'GLL Z6.'GS 8c8'6L1 S09'6Z GzZ0'9vl 0€9'G.1 INNIATY LOVHLNOD

JNNIAIH

JONVIMVA  TVNLOV  FONVIMVA  139dng IVNLOY  FONVIMVA  TWVNLOY  JONVIMVA  139dNd IVNLOVY NOILdI¥0s3a

dvIA
1SV aLA ala alA HV3IA LSV HLNOW HINOW
6zozZ ‘L€ 1Nr
S3ISNIAX3 ANV INNIATY 40 INFWALVYLS Y L2
"ONI ' LOVOdd 5zZ0Z/SL/8



suoljesadQ Wol4 SWOoIU[ JaN ==i== $35URAXT |21C | wipn 3NUBA3Y |10 emfume

000°002-
02/TE/L §20z/0€/9 SZ0Z/TE/S SZ0Z/08/Y szoT/TE/E szoe/8z/t S70T/1E/T YTOT/LE/TT ¥20Z/0€/1T ¥20Z/1€/0T ¥202/0¢/6 $20Z/1€/8
et S _ ool - s 0
I m—————==2 000'00¢
000°00%
000009
000008
000'000°T
00000ZT
000°00%'T
STTTET €9/°S6T T9E'STE TLL'0ST 9ST'9¢- 900°8€T 8€E'8LT 9£0°99T- 066°TLT 2€9°0TT 785°48T TEV'6VE awodu| 1°N
#5528 600°SLT §SS'8TC 89LTT §65°69- #99'8¥T €6699 €77'e8- OTZ'9ET 982001~ 8G'ETT TOE‘¥8T suawisnipy [e10L
0 0] /69T 0 LYT'6T Sjuels swll-auQ
9578 600'SLT 185vS 89LTT 56569~ 99811 €6699 €TT'Es- 0TZ9¢T 982°00T- 8SY'ETT ¥ST'S9T (ssso1)suten 134N
T9S'8VT ¥SL°0T 90866 ¥00'62T 6EV'EE re'es SYETTT €588~ 08L'SET 816°0TC VeI Yot 0€T'S9T suonesadQ wol4 Swoduj 19N
TSSPSO'T  7TO'08T'T  SWE'LL6 6LL'666 9877'€6 TVEv06 8/8'/TO'T  TT8'LTO'T  SS9'LL8 876'V0T'T  €67°168 8ETET6 sasuadxy |ejoL
YET'EE TLT'SE STE‘9T SY8'LT LTO6T 910°0€ 6ST°LE 6¥7'6C LEL'ST 8/8'SE 020°6C 8558¢ 43410
€62°0€ LST'6T 0eT0z 6€E°6T 8S6CT 9T¥'6C 9g€‘0¢ €5TVT 6627 T067T €ST'6T SE9'6T asuadx3 Aujoey
S8€L S16°S 9.9V SL9TT Lyy'E €LT'Y 958°S wi'L 8€8'6 96t°L SSLTT T66°ET Jreday juswdinby
TSS'LE Sy 9€ EVSVE €9/L'8E 69€°0€ 0T0LT 69YvE £70'9C L¥6'6C 29T'LE 8YETE T8TVE asuadx3 3PIYaA
T9€'6T 62°TE vL'LT £68'8C 766°0€ 0L18T L66°6T €9T°0€ 20'8¢ €6€°LT 7289 5022 uonenaidsg
VL8°LT ¥£6°09T 7T 86y 6€L°ST ¥80'%C SLL°0€ TT'ee 9TETT 79'0ST 9€09z SYE‘9E sjeua1ey R saiddns
6v2'SL 7069 86879 0ZT'TL €05°09 7T9°LS €80VS 956" 0v9°sy SETYS 0£9°8S 86669 S$3DIAISS 10eUOIgNS
91S'ST 0€8'ET 0SEVT 0T6°ST 689CT TLSTT LLTYT 0EL'0T 68SCT SLT9T TLLET 98L'9T syjauag/sagem JSWNsuo)
9/8°091 £55'9TC €50°09T ZOT'6€ET TL99ST 899'LST TST8ST L6L'TST 6L9°9€T 9T#'0ST 6CL6ET 0s8czT syjauag Heis
TTTLES 990185 STy'v09 062°L6S 00T‘£9S TTS'EES S.5°729 8/2'699 985°TvS 825009 688°€ES 6ELESS sa3em Heis
sasuadx3y
[44 1T TC |44 6T (014 e 6T 6T €C (or4 T4 sheq 20inu95
ZIT'€0T'T  9LETOT'T  TIST'ZLOT  €8L'8TT'T  ST6'S96 £89'€66 €TT6CT'T  696'7E6 SEV'ETOT  9¥8'STE'T  LIV'SSO'T 897’8801 SNUSA3Y [EI0L
67591 668'ST Sv'ZE 9L9'6C 187°0¢ ¥81°9¢ 8ES‘EY SLT'8C TOV'LT STT'6T TEL'SY 8S¥'8T 12y10
¥0S‘T 9T 128 [44°] 858 61EC LST'8 90L9T TESYVT €98 o 62C°C Suisiespung
6T¥'6L6 TTL'806 €916 7T ove 578861 967’808 87506 £86'68L €TT'7S8 SOL°000°T  LTT'0L8 LT¥'606 $994 NDINISS
0€9'SLT 76%°99¢C TS6°LTT £90'CST T96°CET ¥88'9ST 00T‘2LT TOT'00T 06€°6TT £50'28¢ 99T'6€ET yST8YT SNUBARY JOBIIUOD
anuanay

SC0¢/1S/L <S202/05/9 Gc0Z/iE/S Gc0c/0E/v ScOZ/ie/e Sc0¢/8¢/c ScO0Z/TE/T  ¥e0e/1E/et e0c/0E/TT ¥20c/TE/0T ¥20Z/0E/6 ¥c0c/TE/8

JUSWIL]S SWO0dU| YIUOIA ZT dAnesedwo)
*au| ‘poyoid



0 (0) 0 =

€0v'2L8L°L2 8/1°00'8¢C 208°L¥E 8¢ 1917909'82 2901982 259868 8¢ 22820C 62 :S13SSV L3N ? SAILITIGVIT TVLIOL

£€£0'69Z'L 60'€0S°L £88°99%'L §S9'219'L SL0'9€6°L 8LLLELT SLL'LeT SSOT) / Lid0¥d AlA
999°¢80°6Z 999°¢80°62 999'€80°5T 999°80°52 999'¢80°s2 999°¢80°62 wr'sizile S13SSV 13N
866°€L8 866°CL8 866°CL8 866°c.8 866°CL8 866°cL8 866°€L8 ALITIGVIT 3SV3T INYEL ONOT
90.%95 S.0°0.S S5Z°LL6 878°0£0°L £89°9LL 012608 92288 :SIILITGVIT LNIHHND TVLIOL
- - - - - - B 319VAVYd XVL STIVS
8.2‘s 9L9°‘s v16°e 66L°L 799‘8 9egolL 8616 (IEuaq
B Y)esH) 379VAVd SLI43INIg
95501 89¢°0L £€92'2¢ €891 9z0°Le 06v'ce §20'0¢ 379VAVd SIXVL TI0¥AVd
180°c ozL‘s 160°0L £ZL'S 9z¥‘9 SIZ'L 9056 379VAVd LNIWIHILIY
¥89°9v¢ ¥89°9pe ¥89°9re 789°9v€ ¥89°9p€ 962°9L€ SS¥'89¢ 379VAVd OLd
bl 1 zos‘orL z80°8¢Y 9.6°c22 098082 szo‘zle LELLO0Y I19VAVd STOVM
69809 582°C9 512°98 Z6£ 0Ly £€0°CS 8816 00.°29 I19VAVYd SLNNODIV
1S3LLIGYIT
uonduaseqg
0V’ 28L°LC 8L1°0£0'8C Z08°1¥E'82 791°909°82 29£°019'82 25986882 228202 62 :$13SSV V.LOL
691°0LL°C Z51°¢L6°C 978°696'¢ 8£0°662 ' S6£'88C Y 9€1°1L0L'Y 008°€26°0} :S13SSV a3XId TV.LOL
SyL'v9l 18v'vy eLLeL 129°92¢ €L0°LLE 102°L 202°L SLiISOd3aa
65v°€8L 6SY°€8. 657°€8L 6SY°€8. 65¥°€8L 6SP'€8L 65v'€8L 13SSV 38N 40 LHOM
. . < . i . . ONIT3AOW3Y
(222°v28) (160°0€S) (6¥8°65S) (s25°6v9) (259°659) (8v6°895) (862°L85) -NOLLVI938d3a a3LVINWINNDOY
it - — A i — r—— SI1OIHIA
(9zs‘90z°1L) (z6z‘112')) (625'9L2°L) (e08‘0zZ‘L) (zse‘ezzL) (g8e¥1L£2°1) (969°c€Z’L) ~NOLLYID3¥dIa QELYINWNNDOY
S o p— connt —— tan - LN3NdINDI
(518°220°1L) (059°6.20°L) (£16°980°1) (6£9°c60°L) (€82660°L) (601°901L°1) (zoo'zLL’L) -NOLLYID3¥dIa QALY INWNNIOY
— Eat e — P _— —_— oNIaling
(¥82°228°2) (ges‘s8e'e) (rez'vee‘e) (9£9°20t°2) (LO¥'LLY'2) (9€6°61¥°2) (9s2'82v'2) -NOLLVI9Z4d3a daLVINWNNOOY
¥z 002l LA A rz00z'L Lv8'662°L Lv8°662°L 889°090°C 889'090°C ONITIAOWIY
Z£9°50¢°L 2£9°S0€°L Z£9°50¢°L Z£9°608°L 7£9°s0¢°L Z£9°508°L 2£9's0¢°L SITDIHIA
909°82Z'L 195°9¢Z°L 195°9¢€2°L 195°9€2°L 195'9¢2°L 195°9€2‘L 195°9€Z°L ANINDINO3
0£8°509°c 182°6v6°S 182°6v6°C 0Z£'€S6°C 920°'086°C 920°086°C 150°2€T 0L ONIaINg
§50°099 $50°099 550099 §50°099 $50°099 $50°099 §50°099 anNv1
EYESZENE]
¥£2°2L0V2 129°250'vT G56°LLE VT 621°20€VT 196°128°VT 91L5°L6L VT 120'6.22°81 :S13SSV LNIHAHND TVLOL
8E¥'892 0S¥'2LZ Svi'zee 067'65C ¥LE65C £05°80C v9'LLe saivd3dd
(000°s) (000°s) (000°s) (000‘s) (000‘g) (000°s) (000°s) SLNOOIDY
IN4L9N0A ¥O4 IONVMOTIV
§29°2€0°L 12£°200°L 622°866 251°980°L 9ve‘zS0‘L £50°022°L £L2°152°L 379VAIZOTH SINNODOY
S91°15¥'8L ££L°9L9°8L PEL995 81 £2£°909°8L 796°6.,9°81 600°0Z8°LL 6LV LSL VL (2038 pue §,d0) SLNIWLSIANI
z.l5'9ev'S 189°svb‘e §98°951°€ LTLiLov'E L16°8LY°S 606°L6V'Y ¥65v00°L 13MUVIN AINOIN
e'828 z6g'szL z8z'sTL’lL 76£°2L6 89¢°958 L70°29% £€0°659°L HSYD
:S1ISSY INJHUND
(2 pouad) (g (6 (01 (11 (z1 (1
SZ0zZ/LElL pouad) 6z/8zIZ pouad) Gz/ie/e pouad) z/0gly pouad) 6Z'1€°S pouad) 6Z'0£'9 pouad) 6z/LelL
(1 pouad) se/nelL
133HS JONV1vE

"ONI ‘LOV0¥d



90T'608°9T 656'€LL'TT 80E'STO'EC  88Y'986CC T8TVT'ET 908°£8L'TT 0LT'9TLTT 020979°7T 6€C°L19°TC TLY'STETT 6v°0TY T 7E8'9TY T |exoL
67C'LV66 889'TEY'ET 8LO'LSY'ET  €TV'VOV'ET EEE'TRE'ET 098'871‘€T €SV'SOE‘ET T9Y'BETET 009TZEET T6E'S8TET T61'S8T'ET T6SE9T'ET SJUBWISAAU] [BIIURUL 1d]
0TS'€L vL2'TL 869TL 789'69 9/L'0L 879CL 0LE'LY 0LEL9 €81°/9 €8T°L9 SEV'L9 06£'59 pung Aunb3a/iaxiein Asuop -djueg pajerdossy
TELOETY LY0'9TT Y [8T'IST'S  89T'CET'S STOYTT'S S2'S60°S TYE'BLO'S 769'650'S 7TL880F ETT'ELOY £56'80T'S €TY'SST'S
" 0LY'0v0T ¥Z/TT/6 %E'S Sjueg jended uonipel)
- TTT'€EC0T ¥2/TT/6 %6L8° “jueg [ended uonipet
852'780°C 6T2'17L0T 697'990'C  T6¥'850C 86.°0S0'C T88'7V0C SSLSE0T S68'L70T 990°020°C 8TS'210C 8vL'v00T SZ/T1/6 %S5t “jueg [ende) uonipel|
- 867'6V0'T  6S6'VV0T LLLOVOT €LV'9E0T T09TE0T TEE'8T0'T 6L0'vZ0'T 086'610'T €9L'STO'T L69'TIOT ST/S/9 %88t ‘S¥vQD “ueg dduel||y
& L9S'VV0'T S79'0V0T 895°9€0'T £S9'T€0T ¥2/61/CT ‘%9'v SHVAD ‘|euoiieN plo
= 8/8TSO'T 8LY'LV0T ¥2/S/0T ‘%T°S S¥vad ‘|euonen pio
€LL'VT0T 9er'1T0T 0TT'LI0T  TY6'ET0T 08£°0T0T 252007 T65700T YSETO0T ST/8T/TT %08 € SYVAD ‘[euOIeN p|O
00L‘€20T 20v'020'T 00Z'8T0'T  9/8'VTO‘T 0/9'TT0T £9€'800'T ¥6€'S00'T TIT'200'T ST/TT/TT %58 '€ SYVAD ‘[eUOlEN P|O
5,0
1S3J31U| %S]°E
#65700'T 606'T6VY LL6BLY'E  TTL'LOV'E 598'9SYE T89'SYY'E TLS'9EVE TET'8TY'E 8SSTLEY 658'65E Y TTT'S6T'E 8LY'S8TE Jeuonen pjo - 3334elAl Asuoin
13743 re's 0S6T 0S6'T 0S6°T 0S6°T 0S6°T 0S6'T 0S6°T 0S6'T 0S6'T 0S6T yseD Anad
T6L'6V9'T 008'85Y 8TV'7S8 0T CEETTT'T EVY'ETL ¥87'928 9T¥'0€8 9€T'99L 996'LE9 8€L'T99 666 V7L
0598 0788 83¢'8 TOE'S 9.8°L TVL'L 7108 5089T 508'9T 0TEYT CTELYT £80'VT 3uN022Y SuIpusA
VLT'TT PLTTT ¥LTTT LT'TT LT LT'TT YLTTT YLTTT wLT'TT VLT'TT PLTTT LTTT JeuoiieN pJO - 3unoddY |(0JAed Suim pay
798°LTT £69°CC €697 €697C £69'C¢ £69°7C €697 £69°7¢C £€69°TC LyT've LYT'YT YT JeuoiieN pjO - 3uN0JY ||oAed ueSe3
SOT‘20V'T E€TT'9TY €9T°7T8 9/7'898 685'6L0'T GE8'T89 S09‘v8L YrL6LL Y9SSTL S7T'88s G8STT9 T6¥'S69 JeuoneN pjO - 3unoddy SujessdQ uein
UNo22Y Sunjaayd
Apng aunr Aepy judy youre Asenigag Aenuer Jaquwadag JaquianonN 13q0320 J1aquiaidas 1snSny uonisod ysed
Sc0e/1E/L

Alewwing Juswisanu] g ysed
-auj “yold



(gzo‘er)

sayousq 9
91ge1 21udld
WOO0JSSE]I Ul MOPUIM

sassejd
MY Joj ugisapal Joudiu|

SNoaUeN3ISIW

11eY/1EM3pIS/31310U0)
uegeg

M pay JawAhodwa
10} S9IIYAA
ueges JuawAhojdwa
10} S3I21YIA

nedas / neydse jeasay

uun g - Buipn pay
Suiwn

syun doy jool g - ueseg

Suun OYAH|

(6£0%2)

(eve')

(voL'e)

0T°G/6°987  000°00S
z8L'CCT LIY'0TT 0v'66T°€EE | 00S‘€LT
00°000°0T 00°000°0T 000°0T
00°00SCT 00°005°CZ 005ce
00°96€£CT 00709°2Z | 00°000°'0S 000°SZ
00°£81°LE 00'€1828 | 00°000°0ZT | 000‘SY
000009 00°000°9 0009
00°000°S¥ 00°000°SY 000°Sy
(09°00€) (09°00€) 000°0%
00°000°08 0000008 000°08

ajuejeg aunf fep 1dy yaiew fieniga4 fsenuer 13quwadag JaquianoN 18qoY00  Jequardag snSny  Jano Auied/m

jende9jeiol

SI19MI9S MAN _

520z e panoiddy

123png 1euded 9202-5202

000°00S

66965

000°sT

000°SL

(Togoy)

sasseld
My 10} ugisapal JoL1a1u|

Mmpsayd
juawho)dwa 10} SADIYSA
uege3
juswAoydwa 105 S3IIIYSA

nun T - SuIm pay
Suiwn

syun doj Joou g - uege3

SUUN QVAH

19A0 A1)
Sg-veoe

19y01d



UMop)jealg 9oInIas Jueddined

9€0°8 00L 85/ (s@3e21jdnp In0oyUM) syuedpiped 210
T TL [4 LT 99 L0S €S ST 2€9'6€ 43 TOS6Y |LLL T08 (se1ea1jdnp yum) sjuedidiyed jeiof
5897 00¢ ¥8Z'T |T00°Ss |[LOS 1234 (174 2€9°6€ 889 10S‘6Y 19’8y SINOH |ejo0L
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 A 0 0 9T 49 # 1ed S@3 - aadoeys
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 08 8¢ 0 0 30T S0T sinoy s@3 - @3doyeys
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1T 0 0 0 1T 4% #1ed SA3 - M\
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0Tt 0 0 0 oTT L0T sinoy sa3 - My
0 T 0 0 0 0 0 €€ 8 0 0 1574 Va4 #1ed sq3 -uesde]
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ¥ 474 0 0 987 oze sinoy sqg3 -uedeq
0 0 T 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 43 # 3uedidinied SH| Sulm pay
0 0 SeT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 k14 0ZT SINOH SHI BUIA pay
0 0 LS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 LS 95 #1uedpiyed SH| uede]
0 0 095°T 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 095'T Z8€E'T $INOH SH| ueSe3
0 0 0 0 ST 3 €€ 0 0 0 0 w 4% #1uediyed SS3 MY
0 0 0 0 1T |TIS SOt 0 0 0 0 vE8‘T T76'T SINOH SS3 MY
0 0 0 0 z 85 €6 0 0 0 0 18T 0ST # jueddiped ss3 uedeg
0 0 0 0 L9 68v'y |0V 0 0 0 0 |8s6'v 78€'9 SINOH $§3 uese3
SHI/ss3/sa3
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6T T 0z 6T # 1uedpiued-uospny
91 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 899'T 9 lvzaT 9€ST SINOH - UOSPNH
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8CT 0 seI 67T #1uedidiued- aadoyeys
T€LT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0€SCT 0 0ES‘TT 968'TT sinoH - aadoyjeys
0 0 z 0 0 0 0 0 (0] 4 8 STT vTT # 1uedied-my
TEST 0 0 v6 0 0 0 0 0 9Tv'6 ETT £29'6 EVEE SINOH - MY
0 0 v 0 0 0 0 0 €91 €z €81 LL1 #1uedidied-uesey
89T 0 0 90T 0 0 0 0 0 810°9T 695 €69°9T 76671 SInoH - uede3
ssda
suun saay SHI J0A31d | anepu3 | sS3 ss3 SYA | SYANON ssa ssa palliq |siuednied SINOH umopsealg ununody
uodsues] jusp 33 saniepy | Aeg dw3 [asgdwg | Aujej-ul | [enuip SINOH |eroL /sweddiued
uadapuj 3DINIBS |exoL
|elol yiuow Joud
ST0Z/TE/L ST0Z/0€/9
s921/u3S SuIAIRI9Y SINOH/syuedidiuied 0 Jaquiny




Gg = Jeah Jo pua 1e syuedpiped sy "€ ©

%8 v 174 174
%L 1 IL - 96 = 9ZA4 Ul Ajlenuue paasss sjuedpiyied |ejol 'z ©
%be 1 9 9 syuedpilied mau Gz MeIS T ©
19207 Ad U1 %67 Aq weiSoad SH| 9yl Ul JUSW||OJUD 3SEaIOU| e
%CTT v S89T S89T "yruow Jad sinoy QOST 1ses) 1e ||ig —1oddns SWOH pazi[enplAlpu] e ug/winl — SHI
%€9 v %05 %05 14e1s WweltSoad woJ) SYyuow Jnoj ulyim sqof ojul S|enplAipul JO %08 aJe|d e
%z v %0 %0 (1208 Ajyzuow) sAep 06 Jo) JuswAojdws uielal pade|d aSOYl JO %G8 3INsUl e
1 1 1 1 (09 198141 [ENUUY) Ajyruow JuswAojdwae aAnnadwod olul siuedpilied g JO wWNWIUIW B 3JE|d e
%b0T v z5 zS 0G = JeaA jo pus 1e syuedpiyed sADY '€ O
%SE 1 zS - 9ZA4 Ul 0ST =paAJss syueddiyed |jejol1 g ©
%S 1 9 9 sjuedpiied mau GZT MeIS T ©
19707 Ad Ul JUSWI||OJUD SYA 9SEa.dU| e
:S|EOD UOIIUS1RY pue judawde|d Juswdojaaaqg qof
%98 v oL oL '970T ‘0€ aunf Aq yluow/sinoy 0oz 01 Suiseasoul pue
(Yruow/sinoy T8 = 198.1e1) YIUOW/SINOY 1S 10 SUl|9SEC STAH DYl JOAO 8Se3.0Ul %0SG B dAIYIY 'T  ©
19707 Ad Ul syuedidiuied SyA-uou Joy wesdoud
(s@3) seo1ntas 1uawdolanag swAojdwl sy ul yiuow sad paj|iq SIN0Y JO Jaquinu 93eJaAL By} asealou| e
%8E v ST ST 0t = JeaA Jo pus 1e syuedpiued aAlY "¢ ©
%ST 1 ST - 9ZAd Ul 00T =paAJas sjuedpilled ejoy 'z ©
%I 1 T T sjuedpnged mau G/ MeIS T ©
19202 Ad U1 %052 Aq weiSoud ayy
Ul JUSW|joJUS (JaAleMm |[B) S921AJ9S Suluue]d Juswdojaasq pue uonelo|dx3y uswAojdw3 JoAle) 3SERDU| @ uuyaey
%0 v %0 %0 ‘97 A4 Ul 1uawijjolua weiSoud Jo syjuow Inoy — SINIDS
UIYUM (SHA pue Jaaiem) saoia1as Suiuueld JuswhAoljdws saisusyaidwod s19|dwod [im siuediied 10 %06 e 1swdojaAaq
s221A495 Suluue]d wswAhojdwy 1uswAodw3
%6 v 261 Z61 G0z = JedA Jo pud je sjuedpiled aAIRY ‘¢ O
%68 1 Z6T _ GTZ = 9ZA4 ul Ajjenuue paasas sjuedpijied |e1o ¢ ©
%6 L < < syuedpiyied mau GE RIS T O
19702 Ad Ul %/ Aq weaSoud §S3 9Y) Ul JUSWI||OJUD BSEB.DU| e
%0 1 0 0 (219 ‘Buipieoquo ‘yoieas qof ‘daud maiaialul ‘Bwnsal) 1ie1s 10y0ld
woJj 1Joddns yum os pip qof 1ua1ind JI3Y1 Ul padUBApE Jo qof Mau e paulelqo oym siuedidiuied J0 %09 e
%0 1 0 0 (qol mau/s|ou
mau/uorowoid) 9zAd Ul qol 1us.Ind J1ay] SoueApe 1o qof Mau e uie1qo ||Im 33/5S3 ul sjuedpied g1 e eUUBLIg/EPUIT
%I0T v %66 %66 1uswAojdwa pauie1as yruow uaind ayl Suunp paiojdwsa Ajjuspuadapul siuedidiied 1o %86 e — SIINIRS
%26 v £0S L0s "yiuow Jad sinoy 0SS jo aSesane ue |jig — uoddns JsAle\ e poddns
%9 v 100S 100S ‘yauow Jad sinoy yIom (quswAiojdw3 uspuadapu]) 008 Z O WNWIUIW B 24nJ9S — JuswAojdwy papuaixy e 1uswAo|dwy
1809 Ay a8esony |elo).
10%AlA | ‘WL | /siEI0LALA | Ayiuow S|eoo weJssoid

AInf :yjuo\ Hoday
saw021nQ pue sjeon welisod AjYuon
aunf - Ajnf
9202 Ad




Sul/ pay Ut JeaA 3yl JO 3SIN0D BY) JSAO 9ABJOUD T PPY

%0 1 0 0 L
%L9 v L9 L9 (10841put 10 19341p) yiuow Jad S1YvQ@ 1B T:T SSTJ0 SINoY Q0T [I!19 o Q1ssar
%0 1 0 0 ‘ueSe3 ul JeaA 3yl JO 9SIN0J 3} JOAO SABPUS T PPY e - sanepug
%zl v %zl %zl Ajyauow 211s yoes 10} pa1a|dwod aJe Swio) uodadsul S)RIYaA %00T S24nsuj e
%00T v %00T %00T ‘yiuow yaes Jo pud 3yl Aq Sujuiesy Azolepuew ysiulyy je1s pausisse Jo %00T e
%96 v %16 %I6 yauow yaes Jo ,,zz Y1 Aq Suiuiesy Alojepuew ysiuly jjeis pausisse Jo %56 e Suefr - uolelo
%00T v %00T %00T yiuow yoea Jo Aep ssauisnq 1sai4 3y1 uo paudisse Suluiesy Aiolepuel\l e | dsueu)/Suluies)
%00T v %00T %00T 129(04d Jo weiSoud e 40} 10y0ud 01 SWO? [[IM dnoid/Isquial ALIUNWWOD B ‘YluoW B 2dUO 1SE9| 1Y @
%8 v %IL %IL ‘sasse[o Ajlunwiwod ul a1edipied [jIm sasse(d Juswiydlus uil syuedpiled Jo %58 e
%86 v STT STT /1T = JeaA ay3 jo pus 1e sjuediied sApY ¢ ©
%L8 1 STT - 9ZA4 Ul EET =pansas syuedpipied g0}z O
%S 1 T T siuedpiyied mau oz WeIS'T O
‘9202 Ad U1 %0T Aq wei8oud sy ul JuswW|j0Jud SSA MY 9Seaou| e elI0|D
%S0T v 9176 916 "$SQ Ul yauow Jad sinoy DIAISS 0006 JO WnwiUiWw e [iig e | -S$SA SuIM Pay
%00T v %00T %00T 109(04d Jo weiSoud e 10} 19y0ud 01 SWOI [|Im dnoid/Iaquiaw AjuNWWOoD B ‘Yluow B 90U0 1SE3| 1Y ©
%TL v %09 %09 ‘sasse|d Ajunwwod ul a1edpiled [|Im sassefo JuswydLiue ul sueddilied Jo %58 e
%68 v 8¢t 8¢l ¥¥T = Je9A 8y} Jo pua je syuedpiued aAROY ‘¢ O
%ES i scl - 97A4 Ul GST =paAJas syuedidiyied g0} 'z ©
%8 1 [4 [4 syuedpiied mau Gz MeIS'T O
‘9707 A U1 %ST Aq weiSoud ay3 ul JUswW||oIuS 8sealdu| e
%96 v 0gs‘et 0€S‘CT ‘AJyluow SInoy 0IAISS OO0‘ET JO wnwiulw e |ig e Il — 23doyeys
%98 v 289 289 ‘yauow J1ad (Suip pay ‘uospnH ‘eadoyeys ‘uedes)
%16 v Z€ z€ yruow Jad sinoy 008 (|19 ‘stuedpiled G Jo wnwiulw e 0] Suiwweldoid JUSWYDLIUS [BNUIA BPINOI] e
%0 v %0 %0 199(0.4d 10 weiSoud e 10} 10y0.4d 01 WO0I [|Im dnoid/iaquisw AlUNWWOD € ‘YluoW B 9JU0 1Se9| 1Y e
%8 v %IL %IL ‘sasse[d Ajunwiwod ul a1edpiped [jIm sasse[d JuswydLIud ul syuedpilied JO %458 e
%16 v €8T €81 66T = JedA 3y Jo pus 1e sjuedpiied aARdY '€ ©
%08 1 €8T - 9ZAd Ul 0€T =pansss syuedipled [ejo} 'z O
%0¢C 1 9 9 siuediied mau Qg WeIS T O
'9207 A4 U1 %0T Aq weiSoud 2y} ul JUSWI||OJUS 3SEIOU| e ydais
%00T v 81091 81091 "Ajyruow sinoy 30IAI9S 000'9T JO WnwUIW B |lIg @ —$SQ uede3
%0 v %0 %0 123(04d Jo weiSoud e 10} 10y01d 01 BWOI [|IM dnouS/1aquiaw ALUNWWIOD B ‘YluoW B 2JU0 1Se3| 1Y e
%00T v %58 %58 ‘sasse[o Ajunwwod ui a1edpiped [jIm sassejo Juawydiius ul syuedpilied Jo %58 e
%08 ' 0c 0c GZ = JedA jo pus e syuedpied SAIPY '€ O
%L 1 0c & 9ZA4 Ul £z =panJas syuedpied [ejoy 'z O
%0 1 0 0 syuedpilied mau 9 elS ‘T ©
'920Z Ad Ul %0z Aq weiSoud 2yl ul JUSWI|OIUS 3SeadU| e uuyas/ydeais
%86 v 899T 899T *Ajlyluow sinoy 92IAI9S 00LT JOo wnwiuiw e ||ig e — uospnH
[BOD | 4 iaeiany 98es9ny |elol
30 % Q1A ) eoL | /SIEIOL ALA Alyauon S|eoo weiSoud




P Maximizing individual potential for greater self-sufficiency

PRO

Corporate Compliance Report 2025

It is the policy of ProAct to follow ethical standards of business practice established by the
organization’s management team and Board of Directors (Board); by oversight agencies; and
state and federal law. ProAct has adhered to the Corporate Policy plan in following policies and
procedures, including federal and state laws and guidelines.

ProAct has adopted policies and procedures specific to the organization’s operational

practices. These policies and procedures are reviewed at least annually and revisions are made,
as necessary. The policies and procedures specific to the organization’s compliance efforts are
intended to support and further define the operational practices and responsibilities and, when
possible, are integrated within existing policies and procedures. ProAct has also adopted a
business code of conduct to guide all business activity. This code reflects a common-sense
approach to ensuring appropriate and ethical behavior.

As the Corporate Compliance Office for ProAct, | am reporting to the Board that there have
been no complaints filed for the fiscal year of 2024-2025.

0,4

JOAnn Peine
Human Resources Director and
Corporate Compliance Officer

3195 Neil Armstrong Blvd 204 Mississippi Avenue 1202 Beaudry Blvd 4601 Dean Lakes Blvd
Eagan, MN 55121 Red Wing, MN 55066 Hudson, W1 54016 Shakopee, MN 55379
Phone: 651.686.0405 Phone: 651.388.7108 Phone: 715.410.4216 Phone: 952.403.7979
Fax: 651.686.0312 Fax: 651.388.9223 Fax: 715.381.9814 Fax: 952.403.7960

www.proactinc.org — An Equal Opportunity Employer



‘:I ProAct, Inc.

PRO Corporate Policy Manual

104 Conflict of Interest and Disclosure Policy

Section Initiated Last Update Last Review Related Procedure/Form Page

November

See Appendix
2022 July 2024 See Appendix 1of2

Organization

Purpose:

ProAct is a nonprofit tax-exempt organization. Maintenance of its tax-exempt status is important both of
its continued financial stability and for public support. Therefore, the IRS as well as state regulatory and
tax officials view the operations of ProAct as a public trust, which is subject to scrutiny by and accountable
to such governmental authorities as well as to members of the public.

Consequently, there exists between ProAct and its board and management team and the public a
fiduciary duty, which carries with it a broad and unbending duty of loyalty and fidelity. The board and
management team have the responsibility of administering the affairs of ProAct honestly and prudently,
and of exercising their best care, skill, and judgment for the sole benefit of ProAct. Those persons will
exercise the utmost good faith in all transactions involved in their duties, and they will not use their
positions with ProAct, or knowledge gained there from for their personal benefit. The interests of the
organization must be the first priority in all decisions and actions.

Scope:

This statement is directed not only to members of the board and management team, but also to all
employees who can influence the actions of ProAct. For example, this would include all who make
purchasing decisions, all persons who might be described as “management personnel” and anyone who

has proprietary information concerning ProAct.

Definition of Conflict of Interest

A conflict of interest occurs whenever a contract or transaction takes place between ProAct and any of
the parties shown below. (Note that all terms shown in capital letters are defined toward the end of this
document.)

Mechanism to Prevent the Conflicted Party from Voting or Making Decisions on Potentially Conflicted

Transactions:

Step #1: Before a board or committee action, the Responsible Person having a Conflict of Interest
is to disclose all material facts that apply to the contract or transaction. If the Responsible
Person will not be in attendance, the Responsible Person should fully disclose all facts to
the board or committee chair. The minutes of the meeting should include the disclosed
facts.

Step #2: During the discussion phase, the Responsible Person is to state facts and respond to
questions only.

Step #3: To determine whether a quorum is present for voting purposes, the count should not
include the Responsible Person having the Conflict of Interest. In addition, the
Responsible Person having the Conflict of Interest should not vote. The minutes of the
meeting should reflect that this step has been followed.

-19-



’ ProAct, Inc.

PRO Corporate Policy Manual

Step #4: The board or committee can authorize, approve, or ratify the contract or transaction in
good faith by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors or committee members
{without counting the Responsible Person).

Additional Definitions:

A “Responsible Person” is a member or officer of the board of directors of ProAct, Inc., or a Key Employee
of ProAct, Inc. A “Key Employee” is ProAct’s CEO, all direct reports of ProAct’s CEO, and all staff members
whose positions are at the manager level or higher. A “Family Member” is a spouse, children, parents,
parent-in-law, stepparents, siblings, or stepchildren. A “Material Financial Interest” is a financial interest
that is substantial enough to affect ProAct’s contracts or transactions.

Process for Annual Written Disclosure

Each Responsible Person will acknowledge in writing that a copy of this policy has been reviewed. Then,
on an annual basis, each Responsible Person will disclose below anything that could contribute to a
Conflict of Interest. Any information given will be kept confidential.

I have described below or on the other side of this document, any relationships, positions, or
circumstances in which | am involved that | believe could contribute to a Conflict of Interest arising.

| hereby certify that the information set forth above is true and complete to the best of my knowledge. |

have reviewed and agree to abide by the Conflict of Interest and Disclosure Policy of ProAct, Inc., which is
currently in effect.

Name:

Signature:

Date:

-20-



‘ ProAct, Inc.

PRO Corporate Policy Manual

102 Business Code of Conduct

Section Initiated Last Update Last Review Related Procedure/Form Page

November

Organization 2022

July 2024 July 2024 N/A 10f4

Purpose:

To provide guiding standards for our decisions and actions as members of the ProAct community.

Scope:
All Employees and Board Members

Policy:

ProAct’s Business Code of Conduct provides the guiding standards for our decisions and actions as
members of the community. Although the Code of Conduct can neither cover every situation in the daily
conduct of many varied activities nor substitute for common sense, individual judgment, or personal
integrity, it is the duty of each member of the ProAct community to adhere, without exception, to the
principles set forth herein.

Mission
To provide person-centered services that enhance the quality of life for people with disabilities in the
areas of employment, life skills, and community inclusion.

Directors and officers shall:

e Prudently represent ProAct’s members in directing the business affairs of the organization within
applicable laws, rules, and regulations.

e Act with the care that a reasonable person in a similar position would use under similar
circumstances.

e Implement reasonable programs to promote appropriate organizational conduct and to identify
improper conduct.

e Refrain from using their position of trust and confidence to further private interests.

e Avoid even the appearance of a conflict of interest.

ProAct staff members shall:

e Serve our customers with respect, compassion, courtesy, responsiveness, and professional
competence.

e Demonstrate the highest standards of personal integrity, truthfulness, and honesty in all business
relationships and activities in order to inspire the confidence and trust of our customers, avoiding any
interest or activity which is in conflict with the conduct of legitimate organizational business.

o Provide opportunities for participants to develop person-centered plans, with supports tailored to
meet individual needs, desires, and goals.

o Ensure the protection of vulnerable adults, respect individual privacy and the privileged status of
confidential information and report any maltreatment or exploitation. Staff members will understand

-14 -



‘ ProAct, Inc.

PRO Corporate Policy Manual

and comply with all aspects of the standards of conduct policy, the data privacy policy, and the
Vulnerable Adult Act.

Adhere to ali applicable laws, rules, and policies that govern the provision of services to individuals
with disabilities.

Pursue professional development in order to function as an informed team member; endeavor to
understand community cultures and diverse home environments of participants.

Approach operational duties with a positive attitude that supports open communication, creativity,
flexibility, and accountability.

Report all forms of illegal discrimination, fraud, or mismanagement of ProAct’s funds without fear of
retaliation or reprisal.

Employment Services

Provide job development services only at work sites with safe environments, avoiding placements
where employees are on strike. ProAct does not accept nor bid on struck work.

Promote employment success by seeking environments that match the interest, ability and skill set of
the individual.

Seek to provide a variety of work to allow participants to maximize their earnings yet be challenged.
Seek business only on a fair and competitive basis, without deception in the promotion of our services
or products.

Service Delivery

Distinguish between personal views and the philosophy of the organization in order to avoid any
conflict of interest.

Witness signatures on legal documents only when the individual is known to the staff member; if a
notary public is required, the participant should be assisted to obtain that service.

Be loyal to ProAct, avoiding the use of organizational privileges for private gain, the promotion of
political candidates, and the exchange of money, gifts, or gratuities, other than token gifts of
negligible value from participants/families in situations where they could feel undervalued for their
efforts.

Avoid personal fundraising among staff members and/or participants, as well as the sale of personal
property to/from participants.

Refrain from any type of social networking with participants which may breach the boundaries of
professional conduct and avoid favoritism to any participants.

Obtain approval in advance and follow established policies and procedures to engage in activities with
participants outside of ProAct programs.

Financial Practices

Conduct all accounting and financial practices in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles and all applicable federal, state, county, and local laws.

Generate financial reports in a timely manner; ensure accuracy, appropriate oversight, and efficient
practices with all critical accounting functions.

-15 -



F ProAct, Inc.

PRO Corporate Policy Manual

Marketing Practices

e Promote the use of integrated community work, volunteer, or leisure settings that include individuals
without disabilities.

e Promote community awareness and advocacy on behalf of individuals with disabilities that includes
recognition, with their permission, of their individual accomplishments.

o Promote the use of community environments that provide reasonable accommodations, positive
attitudes and natural supports to the participant.

Contractual Relationships

e Provide contracted services under a written agreement; monitor to ensure that performance meets
the responsibilities identified in the individual plans of participants.

e Evaluate contracted services annually for cost effectiveness and to ensure the health and safety of
participants.

Reporting Method for All Staff Members and Board of Directors:

Staff Members:

Allegations of violations of the code of ethical conduct will be addressed through ProAct’s complaint
resolution procedure. This procedure should be used for any disagreement with the supervisor,
management, or human resources personnel regarding established rules of conduct, policies, or practices.
Staff members shall not go directly to the board of directors nor to the media and will exercise their right
to disagree with ProAct in a respectful manner. Anyone suspected of violating the code of conduct may
be subject to question by the Program Director and/or Human Resources Director and/or the
President/CEO. The suspected staff member may be removed from active work duty pending the
outcome of an investigation.

Complaint Resolution:

In any organization, dissatisfaction may arise because an employee does not know, understand, or agree
with certain policy interpretations or management decisions. Such dissatisfactions are commonly referred
to as grievances. At ProAct, we believe that if any employee has a grievance concerning his/her wages,
hours of work, or other terms or conditions of employment, the matter should receive consideration of all
concerned.

An employee who feels aggrieved is urged to take the matter up immediately with his/her supervisor. The
supervisor is required to investigate the grievance and provide a response or decision within thirty (30)
days. This investigation may consist of, but is not limited to, gathering information from other employees
involved, reviewing company policy, and any other action necessary to become familiar with the situation.

If you are not satisfied with the response/decision from your immediate supervisor, you are encouraged

to go to the next level of supervision, both orally and in writing. This next level of supervision will also
have thirty (30) days in which to investigate the issues and respond to you in writing.

-16-



’: ProAct, Inc.

PRO Corporate Policy Manual

If, after these steps are taken you believe inadequate action has been taken to resolve your complaint
contact the Human Resources Department. It is the policy of this organization to respond to any
reasonable complaint within thirty (30) days and take the necessary actions to settle the issue.

There will be no adverse actions taken against a complaining employee as a result of making the
complaint, regardless of the outcome of the investigation.

If you have a problem which is more specifically addressed by the Anti-Harassment Policy, please follow
the procedure described there.

Board Members:

Allegations of violations of the code of ethical conduct will be reported to the President/CEO or the chair
of the board of directors of ProAct, Inc. Any action to be taken in response to the allegations will be
reviewed with corporate legal advisors before proceeding.

| have read and understand the ProAct Inc. Business Code of Conduct Policy.

Name

Signature Date

-17 -



ProAct Communications

Board Report

UPDATES & EVENTS

ProAct’'s communications team prepared and sent
out invites for the Viewpoint First Look Event
that took place on June 12", Attendees included
Representative Liz Reyer, Representative Pam
Altendorf, and MOHR President Robin Harknonen.
The team continues developing additional content
and pitching the story to Minnesota media.
ProAct’s communications team acquired additional
photos of the Red Wing building and is
developing additional content for site
announcements and updates.

ProAct’'s communications team attended the Food
Truck events and is drafting additional blog and
social media content.

ProAct, Inc.
Published by Hootsuite

@
June 3 at 11:03AM 3

aos

Whether rain or shine, it's always a good day to paint!

JULY 2025

A

SOCIAL MEDIA HIGHLIGHTS

Social media highlights from June 2025: The social
media content that received the highest reach and
engagement across all three social media platforms
were:

. Viewpoint First Look content received the highest

interaction count, over 370 interactions.

. Duck painting activities received the second
highest with over 310 impressions.

. Shakopee PJ Day content received the third
highest with over 290 impressions.

ProAct, Inc.
Pubbished by Hootsuite

@
June 16 at 9:30AM - &

resounding thank you to everyone who came out to

join us for our Viewpoint Project Premiere, including

M

innesota Organization for Habilitation and

Rehabilitation - MOHR President Robin Harkonen, and
our Representatives from Red Wing and Eagan,
Representative Pam Altendorf and Representative Liz
Reyer,

ProAct will be appearing on Minnesota's public
television affiliates this year!




PRO

ProAct Communications

Board Report

AUGUST 2025

UPDATES & EVENTS

. ProAct’'s communications team updated and sent
out marketing fliers for ProAct’s Employment
Support Services.

. ProAct’'s communications team drafted and sent
out a letter announcing upcoming updates to the
Red Wing site’s hours of operation.

ProAct’'s communications team drafted and
published a blog post and social media content for
the annual Food Truck Picnic events.

ProAct’'s communications team drafted and
published a blog and social media content
announcing the return of Brianna Otto to her new
role in Red Wing.

ProAct’s communications team collected quotes
from attendees to the Viewpoint Event, including
Board Members, Representative Altdorf, and
MOHR President Robin Harkonen for use in an
upcoming blog post and continued media pitching.

PROACT iN THE NEWS

. June 23, 2025: Hudson Star Observer
o How Viewpoint Project helps those with
disabilities
« July 12, 2025: Sun This Week
o ProAct Inc Hosts Viewpoint Project Production
Premiere

SOCIAL MEDIA HIGHLIGHTS

Social media highlights from July 2025: The social
media content that received the highest reach and
engagement across all three social media platforms
were:
. Brianna Otto’s announcement received the highest
engagement with over 700 impressions.
. Food Truck Picnic content received the second
highest engagement with over 650 impressions.
. Meals on Wheels volunteering content received
the third highest engagement with over 430
impressions.

0 ProAct, Inc.

The sun is shining, the music is playing, the food is cooking, and we're all smiling!




